
 

1 
 

KASSON TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, March 18, 2024 7:00 p.m. 
Kasson Township Hall, 10988 S. Newman Road, Maple City, MI 49664 

 
Minutes 

  

1. Call Meeting to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Lanham called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

2. Roll Call of Commissioners and Staff/Recognition of Visitors 
A. Present: Chairman – Mike Lanham; Vice Chairman- Jerry Roush; Secretary T 

Eftaxiadis; Township Board Rep- Tad Carter 

Absent: Zoning Board of Appeals- Dave Noonan 

B. Staff: Tim Cypher, Zoning Administrator; Marsha Wolf, Recording Secretary 

C. Visitors present: approximately 3 visitors 

  

3. Consideration of Agenda: Additions or Corrections 
Chairman Lanham asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented. T 
Eftaxiadias moved to approve the agenda as presented; Carter seconded. All 
present in favor, motion carried.   

 
  

4. Declaration of Conflicts of Interest- None   
 

  

5. Approval of Minutes – February 19, 2024   
Chairman Lanham asked for a motion to approve the minutes as presented 

for February 19, 2024 meeting. T Eftaxiadias moved to approve the minutes 

as amended for January 15, 2024; Roush seconded. All remaining present in 

favor, motion carried. 

  

6. Correspondence Received - 
Tim Cypher advised an email (Attachment A) from Jen Aragon, of Sleeping Bear 
Storage, was received with clarifying questions on the afternoon of March 18, 
2024. Commissioners advised the Zoning Administrator should respond to the 
questions presented in the email. If further action is needed from the Planning 
Commission in regards to the clarifications, the Zoning Administrator can 
request additions to the April 15, 2024 agenda. 

  

7. General Public Comment –  



 

2 
 

Ed Wilbert – 2993 W. Gilbert Farm Lane, located behind Sleeping Bear Storage 
Facility. Wilbert requested clarification on final decisions for the timeframe for 
screening, type of screening and hours of operation for the Sleeping Bear 
Storage Public Hearing on February 19, 2024. Commissioner Lanham advised 
he will request the Zoning Administrator provide a letter to Wilbert addressing 
the questions.  Lanham advised that the website includes the Findings of Fact 
that includes all the information requested. Tim Cypher provided a printed 
copy of the Findings of Fact to Mr. Wilbert during the meeting.  
 
Mark Patterson- 3800 W. Empire Hwy. Requested clarification on the HVAC 
noise on the controlled storage unit that was proposed for the Sleeping Bear 
Storage Public Hearing on February 19, 2024.  Commissioners advised to 
contact the Zoning Administrator for clarification.  

 

8. Area Reports  
A. Chairperson – Commissioner Lanham – No Report 
B. Secretary – Commissioner Eftaxiadis – No Report 
C. Township Board – Commissioner Carter – No Report 
D. Zoning Board of Appeals – Commissioner Noonan - Absent  
E. Zoning Administrator’s Report – ZA Cypher – Tim Cypher advised the 
court case is moving forward, response expected by the end of this week. 
Cypher emailed out the February ZA Report and the Annual ZA Report. 
Commissioners advised they did not have any questions on the reports.  
 

  

9. New Business   
A. The Red Barn- Mixed Use- Special Land Use & Site Plan Review 
Tim Cypher advised Mark Patterson is present representing The Red Barn.  
Patterson is requesting a zoning amendment from a few years back and 
have been working closely with the code office, their architect and the 
Zoning Administrator to find a fit for what they would like to do. 

1. Presentation by Applicant 
Mark Patterson distributed a packet (Attachment B) to the 
Commissioners regarding the renovation of The Red Barn. They 
would like to turn The Red Barn into an owner-occupied lodging 
facility.  The Red Barn is currently zoned as a mixed-use property. 
The proposal will have the Patterson residence on the premise and 
include 2 lodging units. The current footprint will not be expanded. 
Their architect has reviewed the building and codes and advised 
they will comply with the Special Use Permit as seen in the packet 
presented. The residential and commercial areas will be separate to 
comply with the mixed-use zoning regulations. Storage seen on the 
prints is unfinished.  
 



 

3 
 

2. PC Questions/Discussion with Applicant 
T Eftaxiadis asked for clarification on what The Red Barn currently 
does and what is currently part of the property.  Patterson advised 
it is strictly for storage and there is no current operation running 
out of the building. Mark advised the structure, septic field/tank 
and the parking lot were already in place when the Pattersons 
purchased the property. The lower side of the building (South side), 
which was an addition to the original structure will house the new 
lodging proposed.  
 
T Eftaxiadis asked about the drainage in the proposal and advised 
clarification from the architect will be needed for the public 
hearing.  The applicant will need to collect the clarification for the 
public hearing. 
 
T Eftaxiadis asked about the existing gravel parking lot and if it will 
be improved. Patterson advised the driveway will remain gravel and 
nothing will be done to the outside of the building except updating 
the handicap spaces so the building is accessible. 
 
Lanham asked about the letter from the fire department and if the 
current driveway meets the requirements. Patterson received the 
letter and has reached out to the fire department for clarification 
on requirements and to discuss the room available on the property 
in case an emergency vehicle needed access. Cypher advised there 
was a setback issue for the driveway in the response and asked 
Patterson to clarify. Patterson advised there is room to potentially 
expand if needed and will have the final determination in the site 
plan. 
 
 

3. Public Comment- None 
 
 

4. Applicants Response to Public Comment - None 
 

5. PC Discussion with Staff 
 

Lanham asked if we had all information for us to set a public 
hearing.  Cypher advised the applicant should have all letters from 
fire department, utilities, MDOT, soil erosion, building department 
to clarify the handicap parking and any other necessary paperwork 
presented to the Commissioners by the public hearing.  
 



 

4 
 

6. Deliberation/Motion to set Public Hearing for April 15, 2024 
 
Chairman Lanham asked for a motion to set a Public Hearing on 
April 15, 2024 for The Red Barn Mixed-Use Permit. Carter moved 
to set a Public Hearing for The Red Barn Mixed-Use Permit on 
April 15, 2024, T Eftaxiadis seconded. All present in favor, motion 
carried.  
 

 
B. By-Laws Review 
 

Commissioners conducted a review of the current Kasson Township 

Planning Commission Bylaws.  

 

T Eftaxidias requested clarification on Section 2B: Special Meetings in 

regards to the 48-hour notice and the potential of conflict of 2H in 

regards to timing of communication received by the Commission. 

Lanham advised he does not recall any special meeting being called 

within 48 hours and it is rare that it would happen for the Planning 

Commission.  
 

T Eftaxiadis asked about deadlines on information received from 

applicants and the public to the Zoning Administrator and then to the 

Commission to allow time for review prior to meetings. Cypher advised 

there cannot legally be a deadline on information received from the 

general public or applicant, although how the Commission addresses 

late information is up to the Commission. If information is sent at a 

reasonable time for review, it can be addressed in the current meeting, 

otherwise it can be tabled until the next regular meeting to allow time 

for review. Cypher will look at Special Meetings (2B) and 

Communications to the Commission (2H) to see what options are in 

regards to meeting state requirements on timing of communication 

received. Previous legal counsel review noted standards in may not 

match what is legally required in regards to the timing of accepting 

communication. Commissioners asked Cypher to review with legal 

counsel so that the bylaws and legal requirements match.  

 

Regarding timing of information to present to the Commissioners for 

review, it was requested that public hearing information and 

applications be sent in a timely manner. Zoning ordinance states a 

timing to get information to Zoning Administrator.  Zoning 



 

5 
 

Administrator needs time to review, and agreed with the Commission 

that a timeline of 3 business days prior to the regular meeting is 

acceptable to send final communication that will be included in the 

meeting.  Anything that comes in after the 3 business days prior to the 

regular meeting is subject to be pushed to the following months 

meeting. Roush advised there has been no issues previously with 

receiving information for review, but it will be helpful to state it in the 

bylaws.  

 

Regarding Section (2G) Agenda: Lanham asked if we need to modify this 

to say ‘agenda will be in the order it is presented at the discretion of the 

chair’. Cypher advised that when ‘old business’ is before ‘new business’ 

it can potentially take time away from the applicant presenting in the 

meeting. It was agreed that G10 and G11 should be switched.  

Commission decided the Chair will be final approval for agenda set-up, 

the Chair has the authority to modify the agenda prior to the meeting, 

and the designee will be responsible for preparing the agenda with the 

Chair. G8 will have Public Hearing added after the Comments from 

Planning Commissioners and Zoning Administrator. Agenda will be 

updated to reflect bylaws.  

 

Public Hearings- Section (I4) Rules of Procedure, (d) and (e) should be 

merged to combined to all persons speaking to the application and not 

separated into support and opposition.  

 

Commissioners asked Cypher to talk with legal counsel in accordance to 

incorporating Robert’s Rules of Order.  

 

Section (I5) Rules for Speakers During Public Comment Agenda Items: 

Bullet point #5 ‘primary residents’ needs to be taken out. Cypher will 

ask legal counsel as to what public needs to state in Bullet point #4 ex. 

Name, address, township etc. Bullet point #7, ‘during the speaker’s time 

limit’ should be taken out.  
 

Current presentation protocol on agenda, #4: Applicants’ Response to 

Public Comment should have ‘with commission’ added to the end. 

Commissioners asked to have when to open and when to close the 

public hearing added to the presentation protocol. Cypher advised once 

the public hearing is closed, nothing can be added to the record. The 

window of opportunity should be available throughout the entire 



 

6 
 

meeting. Cypher will ask legal counsel to weigh in on requirements of 

where to add ‘open public hearing’ and ‘close public hearing’.  

 

Section 4: Duties of the Zoning Administrator (C3): Commissioners 

asked if we can add ‘at Commissioners discretion’ in place of ‘at least 

one week’.  Cypher will check with legal counsel to see if the statement 

‘at least one week’ is permitted. Cypher will check with legal counsel to 

see if all information is not received, the public hearing can be taken off 

the agenda.  Concerns on costs (ex. Letters, notices in paper etc.) to 

applicant and township are to be reviewed for decision.  

 

Section 6: Conflict of Interest  

Cypher will check if by-laws follow the Township Boards conflict of 

interest policy and review if they match.  

 

Review in the April 15, 2024 meeting will include changes that will be 

red-lined with requested changes along with legal comments for 

Commissioners to review. Do not need a public hearing to amend, the 

Commissioners can approve.  

 

Chairman Lanham asked for a motion for by-laws to be put on agenda 

for old business on April 15, 2024 regular meeting. All present in favor, 

motion carried.  

 
 

 

10. Old Business   
A. Zoning Ordinance amendments for PC review – Lanham advised this will be 

tabled until next month. Carter has the master plan survey results. Cypher 
would like to add village commercial to get some continuity for the general 
public to understand. To be continued next month.  
 

11. General Public Comment –Mark Patterson commented on the commendable 
amount of work the commission does. 

 

12. Comments from the Commissioners – None 
  

13. Next Meeting: Monday, April 15, 2024; Kasson Township Hall   
  

14. Adjournment   
 



 

7 
 

Chairman Lanham asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Carter moved 

to adjourn the meeting; Roush seconded. All present in favor, motion carried. 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 pm.  

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

Marsha Wolf 

Kasson Township Recording Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

 



 

8 
 

 



 

9 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

10 
 

Attachment B 

 



 

11 
 

 



 

12 
 

 



 

13 
 

 
 



 

14 
 

 

 
 



 

15 
 

 

 



 

16 
 

 



 

17 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


